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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Board of Education
Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Middlebury and Southbury, Connecticut
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Pomperaug Regional School District #15, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management ‘.s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,

we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented components units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Pomperaug
Regional School District #15, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
Change in Accounting Principles
As discussed in Note “16” to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, Pomperaug
Regional School District No. 15 adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The net position of the District has been restated to recognize the net
pension liability required in implementing GASB No. 68. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 9, the budgetary comparison schedule on page 47, and
supplementary pension information on pages 48 through 51 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential pan of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance,
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Proht Organizations, and is also not a
required pan of the basic financial statements.
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The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and supplemental schedules are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28,
2015, on our consideration of Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Pomperaug Regional School
District #15’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 28, 2015
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015
Introduction
Our discussion and analysis of Pomperaug Regional School District #15 (District) financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. It should
be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.
Financial Highlights
-

-

-

-

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Region exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $23,953,251 (net position).
The Region’s total net position increased by $1,801,319 (after restatement, see Note 1). The increase
was primarily a result of a positive outcome in the self insurance fund.
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Region’s governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $1,450,904.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigiwd fund balance for the general fund was S585,286.

Overview of Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a
comprehensive overview of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of
statements that present financial information from different perspectives:
—

-

-

Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both shortterm and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.
Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the District operations in more
detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.
o Governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending.
o Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the
District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements.
Government-Wide Statements
The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Region’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the four reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Region is improving or deteriorating.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015
The statement of activities presents information showing how the Region’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how they have changed. Net
position-the difference between the assets and liabilities-is one way to measure the District’s financial health
or position.
To assess the overall health of the District, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such
as changes in enrollment, changes in property tax base, changes in program funding by the Federal and
State governments, and condition of facilities.

-

The government-wide financial statements of the District include government activities. Most of the
District’s basic services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general
administration. Revenue limit funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s most significant fundsnot the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the District uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are required to be established by state
law and by bond covenants. The Board of Education establishes other funds to control and manage money
for particular purposes or to show that the District is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues.
The District has two kinds of funds:
-

-

Governmental funds Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in
and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the government funds
statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.
—

Proprietary funds The Region maintains one proprietary fund. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Region’s various
functions. The Region uses and internal service fund to account for its self-insured medical benefits.
—

Fiducian funds the District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that bejong lo others; for the
district, the student body activities fund is an agency fund. The District is responsible for ensuring the
assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets
belong. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net
position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the
district-wide financial statements because the District cannot use the assets to finance its operations.
—
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015
Financial Analysis of the Entity as a Whole
Net Assets
The District’s combined net position was $23,953,251 at June 30, 2015.

Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
School constrncfion bond principle subsidy
grant receivable
Capital assets net
Bondissuecosts-net
Total Assets

Total
Governmental
Activities

Balance
June 30, 2015
$ 7,197,930

Balance
June 30, 2014
$ 5,750,764

513,329
51,915,370
77.718
59,704,347

454,935
53,510,495
116,578
59,832,772

-

652,386

Total Deferred outflows of Resources
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities

9,615,880

4,000,526

3,196,815
23,470,261
36.282,956

3,433,969
27.181,092
34.615,587

120,526

Total Deferred Thflows of resources
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

36,244,202
870,939
(13,161.890)

35,455,495
779,941
[11,018.251)

$.21Li

Changes in Net Position
The District’s total revenues were $75,521,818. A summary of the changes in net position follows. Other
General Fund Revenues were more or less than expected as follows:
State Grants for student transportation were the same as planned by approximately with no variance due to
the State of Connecticut allocation being more than the anticipated budget figure.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015
The total cost of all programs and services was $73,720,499. The District’s expenses are predominately
related to educating and caring for students 76%. Support service activities accounted forjust 169b of total
costs. The remaining expenses were for transportation, debt service and other outgo. The following is a
summary of the net increase (decrease) in the net position of the district.
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
June 30, 2014
June 30, 2015
Revenues
$
$
Program Revenues:
1,401,638
1,537,756
Charges for Services
10,846,398
10,182,620
Operating Grants & Contributions
54,960
40,583
Capital Grants & Contributions
General Revenues
61,793,264
63,681,307
Participating towns
146,353
79.552
Local Revenues
74,242,613
75,521,818
Total Revenues
Program Expenses
Instmctional services
Employee Benefits
Support Services
Transportation
School Lunch Services
Debt Service
Depreciation
Total Expenses
Increase/Decrease in Net Position
Net Position

—

Beginning of Yeart

35,898,425
18,967,887
11,547,634
3,306,232
1,237,015
646,926
2,116.380
73.720.499

35,180,857
21,617,817
11,508,593
4,162,076
1,305,724
730,982
1.985,533
76,491.582

1,801,319

( 2,248,969)

22.151,932

27,466,154
t254217.185

Net Position —End of Year
Note “1”

*Restated as of July 1, 2014 as a result of implementation of GASB No. 68. Prior year amounts were not
restated.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015
Governmental Activities
The net cost of all governmental activities this year was $61,959,540.
The following is a summary of the net cost of governmental activities.
Net Cost of Services
2015
$
Instruction
$ 32,790,404
12,029,227
Employee Benefits
11,242,661
Instruction supporting services
3,134,204
Transportation
40,321
School Lunch Services
606,343
Debt Service
2.116,380
Depreciation
$
Total
$AL2j14,
—

2014
32,231,714
14,046,881
11,209,140
3,928,157
34,260
676,022
1.985.533
64.111.707

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds
The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $1,450,904 which
compares to prior years fund balance of $1,116,669. The increase of $334,235 in fund balance was primarily
due to savings on medical insurance.
General Fund Budgetary Expenditure Highlights
A schedule of the District’s original and final budget amounts compared with actual revenues and expense is
provided in the supplemental section of the audited financial report. General fund expenditures and transfers
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 totaled $63,681,307.
Variance include the following key items
Salaries Offering an early retirement incentive plan, combined with ensuring that new hires were done so at
lower steps on the salary grid, saved the District on new hires approximately $626,000.
—

Benefits The District was self-insured and a budget savings of approximately $450,000 was realized. This
was a direct result of self insuring, and being the main entity in the medical pooling which is comprised of
the region and the two member towils.
—

Instruction Program Favorable variance of $100,000 due to savings in textbooks, general supplies and other
related items. This resulted from aggressively pursuing consortium pricing, and exhausting all current
inventories.
—

Tuition The favorable variance of approximately $85,000. This was a result of less out placed students then
originally budgeted.
—

Administrative Services

—

The favorable variance of approximately $53,000.
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Pompcraug Regional School District #15
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015

Transportation
transportation.

—

These services were under budget by $87,718. This was a result of less out of district

Plant Operation Emergency repairs to aging buildings, electricity costs, new boilers, fuel oil usage and
custodial supplies increased plant operations by approximately $1,100,000. Plumbing, major heat and
ventilation improvements in accordance with the Energy Management Program, general building
improvements and other projects resulted in this variance.
—

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several
circumstances that could affect its future financial health:
-

The uncertainty of federal and state funding will have an impact on the financial health of the District.
The State of Connecticut is anticipating significant reductions to their budget which will impact
funding to local schools and towns.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designated to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability
for the money it receives, if you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information,
contact the business office of Pomperaug Regional School District #15.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015
Governmental
Activities
$

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable miscellaneous fees
Inventory
Investments
Due from State of Connecticut
Noncurrent Assets:
School construction bond principal subsidy grant receivable
Capital assets net
Bond issue costs net
Total Assets

5,852,902
360,816
14,723
969,383
352,054

-

161,381
51,915,370
77,718
59,704,347

-

-

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Difference in change of assumptions
Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
Total Deferred Outflows of resources

115,751
536,635
652,386

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Due to State of Connecticut
Due to participant members
Unearned revenue
Net Pension Liability
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities

1,733,014
288,920
1,845,402
4,324
284,396
59,555
5,400,269
3,196,815
23,470,261
36,282,956

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Difference between expected and actual experience on pension plan
Total Deferred Inflows of resources
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Member Towns
Athletic Capital
State and Federal Grants
Debt Service
Employee Sick Leave and Severence
Reserve for Capital Nonrecurring Expenditures
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

120,526
120,526

36,244,202

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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18,422
35,699
74
32,610
299,923
484,211
(13,161,890)
23,953,251

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Functions
Governmental activities:
Instructional services
Employee Benefits unallocated
Support services
Transportation
School lunch services
Interest on long-term liabilities
Unallocated depreciation
Total school district

Program Revenues
Operating
Charges for
Grants and
Contributions
Services

Expenses
$

-

$

35,898,425 $
18,967,887
11,547,634
3,306,232
1,237,015
646,926
2,116,380
73,720,499 $

209,655

$

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

2,898,366 $
6,938,660

304,973

-

(32,790,404)
(12,029,227)
(11,242,661)
(3,134,204)
(40,321)
(606,343)
(2,116,380)
(61,959,540)

$

-

-

172,028
173,566

1,023,128
-

-

1,537,756

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position
Total
Governmental
Activities

$

10,182,620 $

-

-

40,583
40,583

General revenues:
Participating towns:
Town of Middlebury
Town of Southbury
Unrestricted earnings on investments
Miscellaneous

19,951,990
43,729,317
7,529
72,023
63,760,859

Total general revenues

1,801,319

Change in net position

22,151,932

Net position beginning, as restated
-

Net position end of year
-

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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$

23,953,251

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015

Major Funds
Reserve for
Capital and
Debt
Nonrecurring
Service
Expenditures

General
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivable miscellaneous fees
Inventory
Due from other funds
Due from State of Connecticut
Total Assets

S

-

$

---

236,622
1,265
3,127,113

$

$

---

—-

—

—

—

—

-—

—-

484,211

---

---

—

---

—-

18,422

1,789,637
11,386
1,801,023

-—

---

$

---

---

---

—-

---

3,346,189
969,383
80,816
14,723
2,099,474
106
6,510,691

$

4,324
73,215
46,904
131,651

1,051,032
1,845,402
4,324
2,099,474
59,555
5,059,787

14323

14,723

---

---

---

---

---

---

—

—

—-

585,286
603,708

—

484,211

$

484,211 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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---

32,610
—

32,610

1,833,633 $

7,208
---

484,211
18,422

---

---

-—

---

3,730,821

$

115,280

162,103

299,923

1,833,633

484,211

---

$

S
120,008

179,915

56,707

1,043,824 $
1,845,402

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Restricted for:
Capital and nonrecurring
expenditures
Member towns
Employee sick leave &
severence
Federal and state grants
Athletic capital
Committed for:
Debt service
Unassigned
Total Fund Ualances

1,824,840 $
8,793

Total
Governmental
Funds

32,100
14,723

1,862,852
106
3,730,821 S

Liabilities:
S
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Due to State of Connecticut
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

11,280 $
416,224

1,394389 $
424,358
48,716

Reserve for
Other
Employee Sick
l
Governmenta
Leave and
Funds
Severence

299,923
---

—-

-—

32,610
565,242
1,450,904

—

299,923

(20,044)
30,452

299,923 $

162,103

-—

299,923
74
35,699

---

74
35,699

$

6,510,691

Pomperaug Regional School District #15

Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2015

1,450,904

$

Total fund balances for governmental funds
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets is different because:
Other long-term assets are not available to pay current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the hinds.
School Construction Bond Principal Subsidy Grant
Deferred outflows related to pension expense

513,329
652,386
1,165,715

Capital assets used in governmental hinds are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Capital assets, net of $39,516,509
accumulated depreciation.

51,915,370

Internal service fund are used by management to charge the cost of
risk management to individual funds. The asset and libilities of
internal service hind are reported with governmental activities
in the statement of net position,

1,820,335

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.

(288,920)

Bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures in the governmental hinds.
The cost, net of $589,091 accumulated amortization

77,718
(120,526)

Deferred inflow related to pension expense
Long-term liabilities that pertain to governmental funds, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
hind liabilities. All liabilities both current and long-term are reported in the
statement of net assets. Balances at year-end are:
-

-

$

Bonds payable
Net pension liability
Other post retirement benefit obligation
Early retirement payable and other compensated absences
Leases payable

(15,505,000)
(5,400,269)
(6,361,501)
(4,634,407)
(166,168)

$

Total net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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(32,067,345)
23,953,251

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

General
Revenue:
$
Participating towns
Federal & state grants
Investment income
Sales of lunches, milk, and other
Tuition
Contributions
Parking and activity fees
Other miscellaneous income
Total Revenue

Major Funds
Reserve Far
Capital and
Debt
Nonrecurring
Service
Expenditures

63,681,307 $
7,506,200
6,458

—-

420,000
454

572

1,387,868
37
1,026,237

-—

8

209,655
1.000
301,864
72,024
71,777,508

-—

420,454

572

29,357,883
7,146,539
18,609,168
4,019,9M
1,579,695
761,813
3,306,232
3,613,642

-

-

2,415,142

8

—

—

—

2,451,317

333537

71,507
23,336
442,178

—

695,031

333,537
(3,126,950)

---

-—

---

---

87,003

2,825,032

179,915

35,000

71,521,866

101,182

419,999

179,915

2,416,317

455

179,923

(1,175)

334,235

32,155

120,000

31,627

1,116,669

32,610

299,923

30,452 $

1,450,904

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures
and Other Uses

255,642

(100,610)

Fund Balance beginning of year

348,066

584,821

-

$

2,550,000
3,245,031

188,185

68,728,453

Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

122,159

188,185

333,537

63,681,307
9,314,068
7,529
1,026,237
209,655
1,000
301,864
72,024
74,613,684

30,230,426
7,716,462
18,890,479
4,088,304
1,579,695
833,320
3,306,232
3,636,978
442,178
695,031
643,881
2,550,000
74,612,986

872,543
569,923
281,311
68,360

-—

—-

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Capital lease proceeds
Operating transfers in (out)

-

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

$

—

—

Expenditures:
Current
Salaries certified
Salaries classified
Employee benefits
Instructional programs
Tuition
Administrative services
Transportation
Plant operation
Cost of goods sold
Interest
Capital outlay
Principal payments on bonds
Total Expenditures

Fund Balance end of year

Reserve for
Other
Employee Sick
Governmental
Leave and
Funds
Severeuce

603,708

$

484,211

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial im&nts.
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$

74,279,449

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbary
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, nnd Changes in
Fund Balances of Government Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Laded June 30,2015

334,235

$

Net change hi fund balances-total governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Revenues in the statement of activities does not include revenue from the School Construction
Bond Subsidy Grant since this revenue was recognized when the related receivable was recorded
and not deferred as it was in the fund statements.

(379,417)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
are capitalized and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful life
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlays in the current period.

(1,595,125)

The governmental funds report bond proceeds as financing sources, while repayment of bond
principal is reported as an expenditure. hi the statement of net assets, however, issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities and repayment of principal reduces
the liability. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs and premiums when debt
is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities, however,
interest expense is recognized as it accrues, regardless of when it is due. The net effect of these
differences in the treatment of general obligation bonds and related items are as follows:
2,550,000
48,105
(38.860)

Repayment of bond principal
Interest expense general obligation bonds
Amortization of bond issuance costs
-

2,559,245
In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses compensated absences (vested vacation
and sick days). special termination benefits (early retirement), pension liability,
and other post retirement benefits are measured by the amounts earned during
the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are
measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts
actually paid). During this year the net difference is as follows:
-

-

1,060,871
(926,919)
531,860
(904,815)
(166.168)

Compensated absences and termination benefits
Net other post retirement benefit obligation
Deferred pension expense
Net pension liability
Capital lease proceeds

(405,171)
Internal service fund is used by management to charge cost to individual funds.
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service fund is reported with
governmental activities.

1,287,552

$

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1,801,319

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement Of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Fund

Assets:
Cash
Due from plan administrator
Total Assets

S

Liabilities:
Due to participating members
Claims payable
Total Liabilities

2,506,713
280,000
2,786,713

284,396
681,982
966,378

Net Position:
Unrestricted

$

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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1,820,335

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015
-

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Fund
Operating Revenues:
ContribuUons
Investment income
Total Operating Revenue

$

9,775,717
2,284
9,778,001

Operating Expenses:
Employee Benefits
Other Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

7,588,401
902,048
8,490,449

Operating Income

1,287,552
532,783

Net Position at Beginning of Year
$

Net Position at End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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1,820,335

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement Of Cash Flows
Proprietary funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from members and users
Interest
Payment to providers
Payments for employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

9,492,935
2,284
(807,004)
(7,675,596)
1,012,617

Net Increase in Cash

1,012,617

Cash Beginning of Year

1,494,096

-

Cash End of Year
-

Reconciliation of Operating Gain to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities
Operating gain
Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Increase in due from member
Decrease in claims payable
Increase in due to members
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$

2,506,713

$

1,287,552

(280,000)
(87.197)
92,262

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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1,012,617

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement Of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2015
Agency Fund
Student
Activities

Pension
Trust Fund
Assets:
Cash
Investments at fair value
Total Assets

$

-

$

Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:
Due to student groups

$

Net Position:
Held in trust for pension benefits

$

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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368,956
12,327,270
12,696,226

12,696,226

$

380,155

$

380,155

$

380,155

-—

$

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement Of Changes In Plan Net Position
Fiduciary Fund Pension Trust Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015
-

Fiduciary Fund
Pension Trust
Fund

-

$

Additions:
Employer conthbutions
Plan members
Total contributions

625,000
49,487
674,487

Investment income:
Net gain in fair values of investments and gains/losses
Interest and dividends
Gross investment income
Less : Investment and administrative expense
Net investment income
Total additions

327,323
14,520
341,843
103,233
238,610
913,097

Deductions:
Pension benefits

583,972
329,125

Net Increase
Net Position held in Trust for Pension Benefits:
Beginning of year

12,367,101

$

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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12,696,226

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1”- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
A. Basis of Presentation:
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared hi conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
Management’s Discussion & Analysis provides introductory information on basic financial
statements and an analytical overview of the district’s financial activities.
—

Government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a statement of
activities, which are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. These statements distinguish between
governmental activities and business-type activities and exclude fiduciary (employee retirement system and
agency funds). Capital assets and long-term obligations (general obligation bonds, compensated absences,
etc.) are included along with current assets and liabilities.
—

Fund Financial statements provide information about the district’s governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary funds. These statements emphasize major fund activity and, depending on the fund type, utilize
different basis of accounting. Governmental funds focus on sources, uses, and balances of current financial
resources and often have budgetary orientation, and therefore use a modified accrual basis of accounting
utilizing encumbrance accounting. Proprietary funds, which includes the internal service fund, focus on
determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows,
and therefore, use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds focus on net assets and changes in net
assets, and include assets held in a trustee (Pension Trust Fund) or agency (Student Activity Funds) and
utilize the accrual basis of accounting.
—

Required supplementary information in addition to the MD&A, budgetary comparison schedules
are presented for the General Fund, which is the only fund with a legally adopted budget. The original budget
for revenues and expenditures and the final adjusted budget are presented in comparison with the actual final
budgetary revenues and expenditures (including encumbrances). The Pension Trust Fund presents additional
schedules as required by GASB 67 and 68.
—

B. Reporting Entity:
The school system constitutes an on-going entity established by an act of the state legislature that
designated the school board of education as the governing authority. Members of the school board of
education are elected by the public and have responsibilities over all activities related to public elementary
and secondary school education. The board of education receives local, state, and federal funding, and must
therefore comply with various requirements of these funding source entities. However, the board is not
included in any other governmental “reporting entity” as defined in Section 2100, Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Standards, since the board of education members are elected by the
public and have governing authority. Governing authority includes the power to designate management, the
responsibility to significantly influence operations, and primary accountability for fiscal matters.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1”- Summary of SiEnificant Accounting Policies (continued):
For financial reporting purposes, the District’s financial statements include all funds over which the
District exercises oversight responsibility in accordance with the criteria set forth in Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14. Oversight responsibility was determined on the
basis of financial independence, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to
significantly influence operations, accountability for fiscal matters and scope of public services. Based on the
aforementioned criteria Pomperaug Regional School District #15 has no component units.
C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the school district as a whole. These statements include the financial
activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. Internal Service fund activity is eliminated
to avoid overstatement of revenues and expenses.
—

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function or program of the governmental activities of the district. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically association with a service, program or department and therefore clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include amounts paid by the recipient of goods or
services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. All revenues not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues of the district.
Fund Financial Statements
Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. Their focus is on major
funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major governmental fund is presented in a separate column,
and all nonmajor funds are aggregated into one column. The Internal Service fund is presented in a single
column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type. A
description of the various fund financial statements follows:
Governmental-Funds:
General Fund:
This fund is the general operating fund of the District and provides the accounting for budgeted
revenue and expenditures applicable to the direct operation of the school system.
Snecial Revenue Funds:
These funds account for revenue that is restricted as to its use under specific provisions of law.
State and Federal Grant Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for state and federal grant programs
which are governed by various mles and regulations of the grantor agencies.

-22-

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1” Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
-

Capital Projects Fund:
Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, which are not financed by Proprietary and Trust Funds.
Debt Service Fund:
The debt service hind is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.
Proprietary Funds:
Internal Service Fund:
Account for the Districts self-insurance program for accident and health insurance coverage of
District employees.
Fiduciary Funds:
Trust and Agency Funds:
Account for assets held for the District in a trustee or custodial capacity. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
Pension Trust Funds:
Accounts for the activities of the District’s single-employer public employee retirement system
(PERS).
D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting:
Measurement Focus:
Government-wide Statements
The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. This
is the same approach used in the preparation of proprietary fund financial statements, which differs from the
manner in which governmental hind financial statements are prepared. Governmental hind financial
statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between
the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.
Fund Financial Statements
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. All governmental hinds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these hinds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southhury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1” Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
-

Basis of Accounting:
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Government-wide fmancial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. The Fund financial statements are prepared using either modified accrual for
governmental funds or accrual basis for proprietary and fiduciary funds.
Revenues, Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes
place. On a modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they become both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. The availabie period of the District is sixty days after year
end.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in
return, include contributions by member towns, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from member towns is recognized in the fiscal year for which the amounts are due. Revenue from
grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been met. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available
before it can be recognized.
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are deemed both measurable and available: contributions by member towns, investment earnings,
tuition, grants and student fees.
Expenditures/Expenses
On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recorded at the time they are incurred. The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on flow of current financial resources. Expenditures
are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred except for (1)
principal and interest on general long-tern debt, which is recorded when due, and (2) the costs of
accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave, which are reported as fund liabilities in the period in which they
will be liquidated with available financial resources rather than in the period earned by employees.
E. Fund Equity and Net Assets

—

Governmental Funds:

Beginning with fiscal year 2011, the District implemented GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. This Statement provides more clearly defined fund
balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government’s fund balance
more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1” Summary of SiRnificant Accountina Policies: (continued)
-

Nonspendable fund balance amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are
required to be maintained intact, legally or contractually.
Restricted fund balance amounts constrained to specific purposes by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.
Committed fund balance amounts constrained to specific purposes by the government itself, using its
highest level of decision-making authority, the Board of Education.
Assigned fund balance amounts the government intends to use for a specific purpose, but are neither
restricted nor committed, as authorized by the Board of Education.
Unassigned fund balance amounts that are available for any purpose.
—

-

—

-

—

-

—

-

-

—

F. Deposits and Investments:
The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7402). Deposits
may be placed with any “qualified public depositoryt’ as defined by statute, which has its main place of
business in the State of Connecticut.
The Connecticut General Statutes authorize the investment of funds in the obligations of the United
Slates, or may be invested in any state or other tax exempt political subdivision under certain conditions.
Funds may also be deposited in the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STW). The provisions of
the statutes regarding the investments of municipal pension funds does not specify permitted investments.
Therefore investments of such funds is generally controlled by the laws applicable to fiduciaries and the
provisions of the applicable pension plan.
District Investments are reported at fair value.
G. Inventories:
Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FWO) method, except for USDA donated
commodities which are valued at market value. The cost of governmental fund type inventories, are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Inventories are comprised of food products for
the School Cafeteria Fund.
H. Prepayments:
Certain payments to vendors provide benefits in future accounting periods and therefore are recorded as
prepayments on both government-wide and fund financial statements.
I. Capital Assets and Depreciation
General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds. These assets are reported in the government-wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by proprietary funds are reported on both statement types.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1” Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
-

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date
received. The District follows the policy of capitalizing assets with a cost of $5,000 and more with useful life
of more than 1 year for furniture and equipment. For buildings, building improvements and land
improvements the District has not set a capitalization floor and therefore all expenditures are capitalized. The
District does not possess any infrastructure.
Certain improvements to and replacements of property and equipment have not been capitalized in
accordance with the above accounting policies but have been charged to expense in the accompanying
financial statements. Also, only certain expenditures, as authorized by management, have been capitalized.
All reported capital assets, with the exception of land, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated
over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives:
Useful Life
not depreciated
20
7 50
S 15

Description
Land
Land improvements
Buildings & Improvements
Furniture and Equipment
J.

-

-

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period or periods and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. A deferred outflow of resources
related to pension results from differences between projected and actual earnings, changes in assumptions or
other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in pension expense in a systematic and rational
manner over a period of time.
hi addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period of periods and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports a deferred inflow of
resources related to expected and actual experience on the pension plan.
K. Interfund Activity
flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as
interflind transfers. hiterfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and
after nonopemting revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.
On fund financial statements, short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund “due from/to other
funds”. These amounts are eliminated in the statement of net assets.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlcbury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1”- Summary of S&nificant Accounting Policies: (continued)
L. Compensated Absences
Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employee’s right to receive
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will
compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. Sick leave benefits are
accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability is based on the sick leave accumulated at June 30
by those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments and those employees for
whom it is probable they will become eligible to receive termination benefits in the future. The criteria for
determining the vacation and sick leave liability is derived from Board policy, negotiated agreements, and
state laws.
The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For
governmental fund financial statements, the amount of accumulated vacation and sick leave of employees has
been recorded as a current liability to the extent that the amounts are expected to be paid using expendable
available financial resources. The balance of the liability is not recorded.
M. Unearned Revenues
Unearned revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available
criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues also arise when resources are received
before the District has legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the issuance of
quaLifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or
when the government has legal claim to the resource, the unearned revenues is removed from the
balance sheet, and revenue is recognized.
N. Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefits
that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension liability), net of the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position. The pension plan’s fiduciary net position is determined using the same
valuation methods that are used by the pension plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary
net position. The net position liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the
end of the employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period.
0. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Debt
All accrued liabilities and long-term debt are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
well as the proprietary fund financial statements.
For governmental fund financial statements, the accrued liabilities are generally reported as a
governmental fund liability if due for payment as of the balance sheet date regardless of whether they will be
liquidated with current financial resources. However, claims and judgments and compensated absences paid
from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only for the portion
expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources. Long-term debt paid from
governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements until due.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “1”- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)
P. Restricted Resources
The District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Q. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes, Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Note “2” Budgetary Compliance The General Fund:
-

-

On or before the last Wednesday in January of each year all cost centers submit requests for appropriations
Regional School Board Central Office administration so that the general hind budget may be prepared.
the
to
Before March 31, the proposed budget is presented to the finance committee for review. By the end of
April the proposed budget will be reviewed and adopted by the Regional Board of Education to be presented
at the annual public budget meeting.
Not less than two weeks before the annual meeting held pursuant to C.G.S. Section 1047, the board shall
hold a public district meeting to present a proposed budget for the next fiscal year. Any person may
recommend the inclusion or deletion of expenditures at such time. After the public hearing, the board
prepares an annual budget for the next fiscal year. At the annual meeting on the first Monday in May, the
board presents a budget which includes a statement of (1) estimated receipts and expenditures for the next
fiscal year, (2) estimated receipts and expenditures for the current fiscal year, (3) estimated surplus or deficit
in operating funds at the end of the current year, (4) bonded or other debt, (5) estimated per pupil expenditure
for the current and for the next fiscal year and (6) such other information as is necessary in the opinion of the
board. Persons present and eligible to vote under section 7-6 may accept or reject the proposed budget. The
regional board of education may, in the call to the meeting, designate that the vote on the motion to adopt a
budget shall be by paper ballots at the district meeting held on the budget or by a ‘yes” or “no vote on the
voting machines in each of the member towns on the day following the district meetings. After budget
approval, the board shall estimate the net expenses to be paid by each member town.
The budget for the general fund has substantially been prepared on the modified accrual basis.
Encumbrances, commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services, are recognized as a valid
and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which the purchase order, contract or other
commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reflected in the budgetary
reports as expenditures in the current year. Actual expenditures in the budgetary statement include current
encumbrances as described above. This method of accounting, for encumbrances, is different from that
utilized in the balance sheet and statement of revenue and expenditures (GAAP basis). Encumbrances on a
GAAP basis are not expenditures but a reserve of hind balance. In addition, certain revenues for budgetary
purpose are crediled to expense, but for GAAP purposes they are reclassified as revenue. A reconciliation of
general hind and fund balance between the accounting treatment for encumbrances as required by GAAP and
legal requirements follows:
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “2” Budgetary Compliance The General Fund (continued):
-

-

General Fund
Expenditures
and Other
Financing Uses Fund Balances

Revenue
Budgetary/GAAP Reporting Reconciliation;
Budgetary statement June 30, 2015
Encumbrances June 30, 2014
Encumbrances—June 30, 2015
Payments made on the Districts’ behalf
described in Note “11”
Revenue budgeted as an offset to expenditures:
Student fees
State of Connecticut special education grant
Miscellaneous income
Tuition
Balance (GAAP) Balance Sheet and
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
June 30, 2015

$ 63,688,391

—

—

---

$63,681,307
336,728
585,286)
(

5,650,108

5,650,108

301,864
1,856,092
71,398
209.655

301,864
1,856,092
71,398
209,655

$

18,422
585,286

—-

-—

—

Note “3”

—

$

71.777.508

603JQ

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments:

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2015:
Government Funds
Demand accounts
Cash on hand
Fiduciary Fund Demand Accounts
Internal Service Fund
Demand Accounts
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

$ 3,343,689
2,500
749,111

-

2.506,7 13

$Q

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with a maturity of 90 days.
B. Deposits
Deposits Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30,
2015, $7,475,068 of the District’s bank balance of $7,725,068 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:
-

Uninsured and uncollateralized
Uninsured and collateralized held by pledging
Bank’s trust department not in the Region’s name
Total
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Cash and Cash Ecjuivalents, Deposits and Investments (continued):

C. Investments
At June 30, 2015, the District’s investments consisted of the following:
Types of Investments
Primary Government
Pooled fixed income
Fiduciary Fund
Prime money market fund
Government And Agency Securities
Stocks
Corporate bonds
Mutual Funds
Alternate Investments
Total Fiduciary Funds
-

-

Average
Credit Rating

Fair Value

Investment
Maturity

$

969,383

AAA

N/A

S

261.227
624,890
6,489,320
1,049,708
1,958,781
1,943.344

unrnted
unrated
unrated
unrated
unrated
unrated

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Ratings by Standard & Poor’s are provided where applicable to indicate the associated credit
risk. N/A indicates not applicable.
The District’s pooled fixed income investments of $969,383 is comprised of the Stale of
Connecticut Short-Term Investment Fund, a “2a7 Like” pooled. The fair value of the
portion in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
-

-

-

Note “4”

—

Interest rate risk The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.
-

Credit risk The District has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due
to credit risk other than State Statutes governing investments hi obligations or any State or
political subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision.
-

Receivables and Due from State of Connecticut:

Receivables and amounts due from State of Connecticut at June 30, 2015 consisted of intergovernmental
grants and entitlements. All receivables are considered collectible in full based on prior years experience and
the stable condition of State programs.
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Note “5” Interfund Accounts:
-

At June 30, 2015 the amounts due to and from other hinds were as follows:
Receivable Fund
Reserve for Capital Nonrecurring
Expenditures
Reserve for Employee
Sick Leave and Severance
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Note “6”

—

Payable Fund

Amount

General Fund

$

General Fund
Debt Service
School Cafeteria
State and Federal Grant

56,707
179,915
1,789,637
17,736
55,479

Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements and land
Improvements
Fumiwre and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance
Increases
July 1,2014
$
$

Balance
June 30. 2015
$

Decreases
$

2,186,069

87,980,612
743,943
88,724,555
(36,880,982)
519.147)
(37.400,129)
51,324,426
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2,186,069

134,550
409,329
543,879
(1,970,153)
146.227)
(2.116,380)
(1.572.501)

22,624)
22,624)

88.115,162
1.130,648
89,245,810

(38,851,135)
( 665.374)
(39.5 16.509)
22,624) 49,729,301
$(22.624
—-
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Note “7” Long-Term Debt:
-

The following is a summary of activity for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Balance
July 1, 2014

2,600,000

General Obligation Refunding
Bond
Issued dated January 1,2011
payable in annual installments of
51,5 15,000 in 2016, $1,540,000
in 2017 and 2018, $1,545,000 in
2019 and 2020, $1,535,000 in
2021, $1,525,000 in 2022,
$1,520,000 in 2023, $915,000 in
2024, and $830,000 in 2025.
The interest rates for the issue
range from 3% 4.5%

15,455,000

Compensated Absences & Other
Leave Benefits
Vested and accumulated
severance and sick leave

5.695,278

-

Eiuipment Lease
Capitalized lease agreement for
technology equipment dated
October 11, 2013. Interest at 8%
maturing December 11, 2017
Other Post Retirement Benefit
Obligation
Totals

---

5.434.582
$=jj$j

$

$

$

$

General Obligation Refunding
$
Bond
Issue dated April 15, 2003
payable in annual installments of
$1,025,000 in 2016, $470,000 in
2017. The interest rates for the
issue range from 4% 5%.
-

Retirements

Additions

Amounts
Due in One
Year

Balance
June 30, 2015

1,105,000

1,495,000

1,025,000

1,445,000

14,010,000

1,515,000

20,705

1,081,576

4,634,407

577,259

333,537

167,369

166,168

79,556

---

---

926.919

$flJJj
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Note “7” General Long-Term Debt (continued):
-

The following is a sununary of the District’s future annual debt service requirements to maturity for
general obligation bonds:
Year Ending June 30
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025

Principal
2,540,000
2,010,000
1,540,000
1,545,000
1,545,000
6,325,000

Interest
589,612
477,263
396,275
330,712
270,844
519.018
S 2.583.724

Year Ending June 30
2016
2017

Principal
79,556
$
86,612
166.168
$

Interest
14,737
$
7,681
$4j

Equipment Lease

Total
3,129,612
2,487,263
1,936,275
1,875,712
1,815,844
6,844,018

$

Total
94,293
94,293

Note “8” Operating Deficiencies and Fund Deficits:
-

At June 30, 2015 the following individual funds had deficiencies of revenue over expenditures an&or fund
deficits for the year then ended:
Fund
Operating
Deficit
Deficiency
100.610
$
Reserve for Capital and Non recurring Expenditures
5.321
5.321
$
$
School Cafeteria
$__________

Note “9” Employees Retirement System. Non-certified Employee Plan
-

A. General Information about the Pension Pian:
Pomperaug Regional School District #15 is the administrator of a single-employer public employee
retirement system (PERS) established and administered by the Board of Education for its non-certified
employees. The PERS is considered to be part of the District’s reporting entity and is included in the
District’s financial reports as a pension trust fund. The membership of the plan consisted of the following
at July 1,2014, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total Members

70
14

12

The plan is a contributory single employer, defined benefit plan and covers substantially all full-time
and all regular part-time non-certified employees who are hired prior to age 60 and who work 25 hours per
week or more. Participants who have attained their normal retirement date are eligible for a normal
retirement benefit. Normal retirement date is the first day of the month coincident with or next following the
65th
birthday or the completion of 10 years of service, whichever is later. However,
later of the participant’s
union, this date is the later of age 61 or the completion of 10 years of service,
custodians’
the
for members of
The retirement benefit is as follows:
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-

Secretaries, Instructional Assistants: if participant does not make contributions, 1.5% of
highest 3 year average salary times Credited Service limited to 30 years. if contributes .25%
of salary, percentage increases to 1.6%. if contributes .65% of salary, percentage increases to
1.7%. If contributes .85%, percentage increases to 1.8%.
Custodians: Effective July 1, 2002, 1.8% of highest 3-year average salary times credited
service and effective July 1,2003, 1.9% of highest 3-year average salary times credited
service, Effective July 1, 2004,2% of highest 3 year average salary times credited service.
Effective July 1, 2008, 2.2% of highest 3 year average salary times credited service.
Effective July 1, 2004, service is not limited to 30 years. Custodians are required to
contribute 1.9% of salary.
Nurses: if participant does not make contributions, 1.5% of highest 3 year average salary
times Credited Service. if contributes .60% of salary, percentage increases to 1.6%.
Cafeteria Workers and Therapists: 1.5% of highest 5 year average salary times Credited
Service.
Non-Union Employees: if participant does not make contributions, 1.5% of highest 3-year
average salary times Credited Service, if contributes .25% of salary, percentage increases to
1.6%. if contributes .65% of salary, percentage increases to 1.7%. if contributes .85%
percentage increases to 1.8%. Effective July 1, 2005, service is not limited to 30 years.
Early Retirement
Eligibility: Participants with 10 or more years of service may retire any time after age 55.
Benefit Formula: The same as normal retirement, if payments commence at age 65. If the payments
commence at the participant’s early retirement date, the benefit will be reduced by one-half of 1% for each
complete calendar month that the participant’s early retirement date precedes his normal retirement date.
However, for secretaries, instructional assistants, and non-union employees, the above reduction applies prior
to age 60. To age 60, the reduction is one-quarter of 1% per month.
Late Retirement Benefit
Benefits commence first of the month on or after termination. Benefit is payable based on service and
compensation as of that date.
Termination Prior to Retirement
Vesting: Age 40 and 10 years of service.
Benefit: A monthly normal retirement benefit equal to 1 ½ of the member’s Average Monthly Salary,
multiplied by Credited Service (maximum of 30 years).
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Note “9” Employees Retirement System, Non-certified Employee Plan (continued)
-

Authority and Funding Policy:

B.

The Board of Education has established the benefit provisions and contributions to the plan. The Board is
also authorized to make changes to the plan provisions through the budgetary process.
The District’s funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates
that are sufficient to accumulated the assets to pay benefits when due. Covered employees with the exception
of custodians whom are required to contribute 1.9% of salary are not required to contribute anything to the
PERS.
C.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting
The pension trust fund’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
(contributions and investment income) are recognized when they are earned, and expenses (benefits) are
recognized when they are due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Valuation of Investments
Investments are valued at fair value based upon quoted market prices.
D.

Investments:

Investment Policy: The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established
and may be amended by the Board of Education Finance Committee by a majority vote of its members. It
is the policy of the Board of Education to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the
prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The pension
plan’s investment policy discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims
to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class allocations over shoit time spans. The following was the
Board’s adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2015:
Asset Class
US Stock Large
US Stock Small/Mid
Non-US Stock Developed
Non-US Stock Emerging
US Fixed Income Investment Grade
Marketable Alternatives

Target Allocation
30.00%
15.00%
15.00%
10.00%
15.00%
15.00%
lOthflO%

The following investments represent 5 or more of plan net assets:
Omega Overseas Partners, Ltd.
Boyd Watterson GSA Fund, PP
Vanguard 500 Index Admiral
Vanguard FTSE Development Market
TheEndowmentThlFundLP

S 1,149,691
$ 1,207,415
$ 693,881
$1,012,263
$ 736,016
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9.33%
9.79%
5.63%
8.21%
5.97%

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note ‘9” Employees Retirement System, Non-certified Employee Plan (continued)
-

Rate of Return: For the year ended June 30. 2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension
plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 2.09%. The money-weighted rate of
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts
actually invested.
E. Net Pension Liability of the District
The components of the net pension liability at June 30, 2015, were as follows;
$ 18,096,495
12.696,226
$ 5.400.269

Total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Net pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

70.16 %

F. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement;
Inflation:
Rate of compensation increase (including inflation)
Investment Rate of Return:
(net of investment-related and administrative expense)

3%
3.50%
7.50%

Mortality:
Current: RP-2000 Mortality Table with separate male and female rates, with no collar adjustment with
separate tables for non-annuitants and annuitants projected to the valuation date with Scale BB-2D.
Prior: RP-2000 Mortality Table with separate male and female rates, with no collar adjustment with separate
tables for non-annuitants and annuitants projected to the valuation date with Scale BB.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed. Best
estimates of the real rates of return for each major asset class are included in the pension plan’s target
asset allocation.
The following information is based on geometric means and does not reflect additional returns through
investment selection, asset allocation and rebalancing. The results support a rate between 6.75% and
7.50%. An expected rate of return of 7.50% was used.
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-

Long-Term Exnected
Real Rate of Return
Asset Class
3.80%
US Stock Large
4.70%
US Stock Small/Mid
5.00%
Non-US Stock Developed
7.80%
Non-US Stock Emerging
.20%
US Fixed Income Investment Grade
2.20%
Marketable Alternatives
G. Discount Rate:
Based on the plan’s current net pension liability and current contribution policy, the plan’s projected
fiduciary net position will be sufficient to cover projected benefit payments and administrative expenses
indefinitely. Therefore, since the fund is not projected to run out of money, the 7.5% interest rate
assumption was used to discount plan liabilities.
H. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using the discount rate of
7.50%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.50%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

Net pension liability as of June 30.
2015

Current
Discount Rate
7.50%
5,400,269
$

-37-

1% Decrease
6.50%
7,546,541
S

1% Increase
8.50%
3,576,007
$
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-

I. Changes in the Net Pension Liability
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability
Net Position
Liability
(a)-(b)
(a)
(b)
S 16,862.555

Balances as of June 30, 2014
Changes for the Year:
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Changes in assumptions
Contributions employer
Contributions member
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of
member contributions
Administrative expense

539,861
1,283,679

539,861
1,283,679

---

—-

142,049)
136,421

(

S 4,495,454

$ 12,367,101

( 142,049)

---

-—

625,000
49,487
259,310

—

—

(

583,972)
—

(
(

(
(
(

136,421
625,000)
49,487)
259,310)

583.972)
20,700)

20,700

329.125

904,815

Other

1.233.940

Netchanges

55.400.269

Balances as of June 30. 2015

J. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions are reported as follows:
For the fiscal year ended June 30 2015, the recognized pension expense is $997,955. As of June 30, 2015,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are reported as follows:
Deferred Outflows
Of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
On pension plan investments
Total

$

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
120,526)
$(

115,751

$

536,635
652.386

$(

l20.)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in the pension expense as follows:
Year Ended June 30:
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

$ 133,306
133,306
133,306
133,305
853)
(
510)
(
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Note “10”- State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System
A. General Information about the Pension Plan
Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public schools are provided
with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System, a cost sharing multiemployer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Teachers’ Retirement Board. Chapter 167a of the State
Statutes grants authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the Teachers Retirement Board. The
Teachers Retirement Board issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
www.ct.gov.
B. Summary of Significant Accounting Pojicies
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachers Retirement System have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
Connecticut Teachers Retirement System. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
C. Benefit Provision
The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Employees are eligible to retire at age 60
with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service including at least 25 years
of service in Connecticut.
Normal Retirement: Retirement benefits for the employees are calculated as 2% of the average annual
salary times the years of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary during the 3
years of highest salary). In addition, amounts derived from the accumulation of 1% contributions made
prior to July 1, 1989 and voluntary contributions are payable.
Early Retirement: Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of
Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of Connecticut service
with reduced benefit amounts.
Disability Retirement: Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of
service. Five years of credited service is required for nonservice-related disability eligibility. Disability
benefits are calculated as 2% of average annual salary times credited service to date of disability, but not
less than 15% of average annual salary, nor more than 50% of average annual salary.
D. Contributions
State of Connecticut: Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79436
as amended), contribution requirements of active employees and the State of Connecticut is amended and
certified by the State Teachers’ Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. The
contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions
and investment earnings, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits earned by employees during that
year, with any additional amount to finance unfunded accrued liability.
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Note ‘10” State of Connecticut Teachers Retirement System (continued):
-

Employer (School District): School district employers are not required to make contributions to the plan.
Employees: Effective July 1, 1992, each teacher is required to contribute 6% of salary for the pension
benefit.
E. Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2015 the District reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net pension liability,
deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources, due to the statutory requirement that
the State of Connecticut pay 100 percent of the required contribution.
The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related
state support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as
follows:
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District

$
75,306.069

Total
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2014. At June
30, 2015, the District has no proportionate share of the net pension liability.
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense and revenue of $5,650,108 for
on-behalf amounts for the benefits provided by the State.
F. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liabiLity in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
3.00%
3.75-7.00%, including inflation
8.50%, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table RP-2000 projected 19 years using
scale AA, with a two year setback for males and females for the period after service retirement and for
dependent beneficiaries.
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
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-

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2005 June 30, 2010.
—

Future cost-of-living increases for members who retire on or after September 1, 1992 are assumed to be
an annual cost-of-living adjustment 012%.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension pian investments was determined using a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the plan’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table.
G. Acluarial Assumptions (continued)

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Large cap U.S. equities
Developed non-U.S. equities
Emerging markets (non-U.S.)
Core fixed income
Inflation linked bond fund
Emerging market bond
High yield bonds
Real estate
Private equity
Alternative investments
Liquidity fund

2 1.0%
18.0%
9.0%
7.0%
3.0%
5.0%
5.0%
7.0%
11.0%
8.0%
6.0%

Total

100.0%

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
7.3%
7.5%
8.6%
1.7%
1.3%
4.8%
3.7%
5.9%
10.9%
0.7%
0.4%

H. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.50%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and the State contributions will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates
in the future years. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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“10”

-

State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System (continued):

I. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability is $0, and therefore, the change in the
discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the State.
J. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
financial statements available at www.ct.gov.
K. Other Information
Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of the financial
statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the District has no obligation to contribute to
the plan.
Note “11”— Risk Management and Unpaid Claims Liabilities:
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and distribution of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District maintains commercial
insurance coverage for all risks of loss, including workers’ compensation insurance. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.
Medical Self-Insurance
The District entered into a Cooperative Agreement with the Town of Middlebury and the Town of
Southbury, effective July 1, 2014, to facilitate the group purchase of health benefits for active employees and
non-Medicare eligible retirees. During 2014-2015, total claims expense of $7,588,401 was incurred by the
District. This expense represents claims processed and an estimate for claims incurred but not reported as of
June 30, 2015.
The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but not
reported; accordingly, the Fund recorded an additional liability at June 30, 2015 of $521,324.
Premium payments are reported as interfund services provided and used for the General Fund and,
accordingly, they are treated as operating revenues of the Self-Insurance Fund and operating expenditures of
the General Fund.
A schedule of changes in the claims liability for the year ended June 30, 2015 is presented below:

2014-2015

Accrued
Liability
Beginning of
Fiscal Year
769.179
$

Current Year
Claims Paid
and Changes
in Estimates
$Jj
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Accrued
Liability
Claim
Payments
$j4j

Accrued
Liability
End of
Fiscal Year
$ 681.982
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Note “12” Commitments and Contingencies:
-

Litigation:
It is the opinion of the school district officials that there are no material or substantial claims against the
district, which will be finally determined so as to result in a judgment orjudgments against the district, which
would materially effect its fmancial position.
Grant Programs:
The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to
audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with
the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the
collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2015 may be impaired. In the opinion of the District, there
are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the
respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying combined financial
statements for such contingencies.
Note “13”

—

Post Retirement Benefits

A. Basis of Accounting
From an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of postemployment healthcare benefits, like the cost of
pension benefits, generally should be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than in the
future year when it will be paid. In adopting the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, the District
recognizes the cost of postemployment healthcare in the year when the employee services are received,
reports the accumulated liability from prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential
demand on the District’s future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be
phased in over 30 years, commencing with the 2010 liability.
B. Plan Description
The District provides post-retirement benefits for certain employees for current and future health and life
insurance benefit expenses through a single-employer defined benefit plan. A bi-annual actuarial valuation is
made to determine whether the contributions are sufficient to meet the plan obligations. The latest actuarial
valuation was made July 1,2014. The post-retirement plan does not issue stand-alone financial reports.
The contribution requirements of plan members and the district are established and may be amended by
the District. The District determines the required contribution using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
Membership in the plan consisted of the following at July 1, 2014, the date of the last actuarial valuation.
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total
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31
432

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note ‘13”— Post Retirement Benefits (continued):
Funding Policy
The District has not established a trust fund to irrevocably segregate assets to fund the liability
associated with post-employment benefits in accordance with GASB guidelines. Although a mist fund may
not be established in the future to exclusively control the funding and reporting of post-employment benefits,
the District anticipates a commitment to fund normal costs as well as long-term approach for the amortization
of the actuarial accrued liability. The goal is to absorb, within the budgetary process, the annual OPEB cost
of benefits and segregating the needed resources.
C. Annual OPEB Cost and OPEB Obligation
The District’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis,
is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or past service
cost) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
$ 1,287,900
217,383
C 302.257)
1,203,026
1 276,107)
926,919
5.434,582

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual OPEB cost (expense)
Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation June 30, 2014
Net OPEB obligation June 30, 2015
—

—

The actuarial accrued liability as of June 30, 2015 is estimated to be $12,861,139. The District’s
contributions represent payments made for premiums for insured retired individuals.
Actuarial
Valuation
Date
6/30/14
6/30/12
6/30/10

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
$
$
$

—

---

---

Unfunded
Actuarial
AAL
Accrued
Liability (AAL) UAAL
$ 12,861,139 S 12,861,139
$ 13,644,300 $ 13,644,300
$ 14,496,800 $ 14,496,800

Funded
Ratio
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Covered
Payroll
Payroll
44.0%
$29,093,319
46.9%
$29,104,222
47.8%
$ 30,353,276

The District’s three year trend information on its annual OPEB cost and the percentage of annual OPEB
cost contributed to the plan was as follows:
Annual
Actual
Percentage
OPEB
Contribution
Contributed
Cost
Fiscal Year Ending
23%
276,107
6/30/15
$ 1,203,026 $
31%
371,144
$ 1,196,110 $
6/30/14
17%
214,092
6/30/13
$ 1,237,188 $
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “13”— Post Retirement Benefits (continued):
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts of assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects
of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.
D. Actuarial Assumptions:
The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuation. Additional information as of
the last actuarial valuations follows:
July 1, 2014
Projected Unit Credit
Market Value
Level dollar, open
30 Years

Valuation Date:
Actuarial Cost Method:
Asset Valuation Method:
Amortization Method:
Remaining Amortization Period
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Medical Inflation rate

4.00%
9.0% in 2014, decreases by .5% to 5.0% in
2022 and beyond.

Note “14”— Thterfund Transfers:
At June 30, 2015, interfund transfers consisted of the following. These balances resulted from the time lag
between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimburseable expenditures occur, (2)
transactions are recorded in the accounting systems, and (3) payments between funds are made.
S 2,825,032

Debt Service
Reserve for Capital and
Nonrecurring Expenditures
School Cafeteria
Reserve for Employee Sick Leave
And Severance
Total General Fund

87,003
35,000
179,915

Eliminations
Interhind receivables, payables, and transfers are reported in the governmental fund financial statements.
In the entity-wide statements, intefflind receivables, payables and transfers are eliminated within the
governmental activities column.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Financial Statements
Note “15”— Subsequent Events:
In connection with the preparation of the financial statements of Pomperaug Regional School District #15,
subsequent events were evaluated through January 6, 2016. which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
Note “16”— Prior Period Adjustment and Restatement:
As of July 1, 2014, the District implemented GASE Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pension, which replaced the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions
by State and Local Government Employers. GASB Statement No. 68 required the District to recognize a net
pension liability, deferred inflows of resources, and deferred outflows of resources related to pension benefits.
ft also creates numerous additional disclosures in the footnotes and required supplementary information
schedules. As a result, the District recorded the following restatement:

Net Position balance at June 30, 2014, as originally reported
Adjustments:
Net pension liability reported per GASB No.27
Starting net pension liability reported per GASB No. 68
Net Position balance at July 1, 2014, as restated
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Governmental
Activities
$25,217,185
1,430,201
( 4.495.454)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Schedule Of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Original
and Final
Budget
Revenue:
Participating towns
Town of Middlebury
Town of Southbury
Other
Investment income
Other income
Total Revenue

Actual

19,951,990
43,729,317

$

Expenditures:
Current
Salaries certified
Salaries classified
Employee benefits
Instructional programs
Tuition
Administrative services
Transportation
Plant operation
Total Expenditures
-

-

Operating Transfers in (out)
Specific Capita? improvements
School Cafeteria
Reserve for employee sick leave and
severence benefits
Debt service fund

19,951,990
43,729,317

S

63,681,307

6,458
626
63,688,391

29,740,179
7,180,328
13,408,612
2,152,325
1,657,155
824,626
3,222,785
2,670,264
60,856,274

29,147,845
7,146,539
12,959,060
2,051,035
1,571,481
770,848
3,135,067
3,772,482
60,554,357

Fund Balance beginning of year
$

Fund Balance end of year
-
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592,334
33,789
449,552
101,290
85,674
53,778
87,718
(1,102,218)
301,917

(179,915)

2,825,032

(179,915)
(2,825,032)

63,681,307

63,681,307

-—

7,084

7,084

11,338

11,338

---

-

6,458
626
7,084

(87,002)
(35,000)

---

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over
Expenditures and Transfers

$

(87,003)
(35,000)

1
---

Total Expenditures and Operating Transfers

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

-—

$

18,422

$

18,422

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Pension Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Two Fiscal Years
2014

2015
Total pension liability:
Service Cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual experience
Change of assumtions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability beginning
Total pension liability ending

$

-

-

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions employer
Contibutions member
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position beginning
Plan fiduciary net position ending
-

-

-

-

$

Net Pension Liability Ending
-

$

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll
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(497,439)
1,218,290
15,644,265
16.862,555

625,000
49,487
259,310
(583,972)
(20,700)
329,125
12,367,101
12,696,226

500,000
49,777
1,590,709
(497,439)
(15,100)
1,627,947
10,739,154
12,367,101

5,400,269

-

-

$

6,235,215
86.61%

4,495,454

73.34%

70.16%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
Covered employee payroll

521,605
1.194,124

539,861 $
1,283,679
(142,049)
136,421
(583,972)
1,233,940
16,862,555
18,096,495

$

6,451,035
69.69%

2014
1.072382 $
500,000
572.382 $
6,451,035 $
7.75%

2015
1,031,473 $
625,000
406,473 $
6235,215 $
1002%

$
5
6.00%

925%

13.37%

Inflation
Salary increases
Investment nrc of return
Retirement age
Mortality

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rules:
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

627%

6.90%

751%

.49.

3.5%
750%
65 years
separate tables for non-annuitauts and annuitants
RP2000 mortality table with separate male and female rates, with no collar adjustment with
projected to the valuation dare with scale BH-2D

3.0%

Entry Age
Level dollar open
15 years
of the difference between the actual return on
The actudal value of astets used in the development of plan contribution phase in recognition
year.
per
market value and the expected return on market value over a 3 year period at 33.33%

1022%

4,696,904 $

5,114243 $

6,056,227 $

6,038,740 $ 5,966,108 5

6,670,407 $ 6,427518 $

$

6.43%

4,704,949 $

-

(18.722) $

(14506) $

3,278 $

(39.859) $

310,274 $

564,038 $

$

380.000

610,000

808,709

600,000

400000
-

2006
302,763 $
302.763

2007
334,031 $
352.763

2008
338257 $
352.763

2009
383,278 $

2010
570.141 $

2011
203,709 $

2012
910,274 $

2013
964,038 $

July 1.2013
Valuation datt
30. 2015
June
Measurement date:
to the end of the fiscal ytar in v.tch the contributions am reported.
Actuarially determined contribution ruin am calnibted as of June 30. two years prior

Notes to Schedule

Coothbodonasapeotageofcoseredemployeepapvfl

Covendcniptoyecpaymtl

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$
ActuaHaflydaennioedcanuibution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution

Pompemug Regional School District #15
Pension Plan
Schedule of Employer Conthbotioas
Last Ten Fisoal Van

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Pension Plan
Schedule of Investment Returns
Last Two Fiscal Years

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense
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2015

2014

2.09%

14.47%

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System
Last Fiscal Year

2015
0.00%

Districts proportion of the net pension liability

$

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s porportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District

-

75,306,069

Total

$

75,306,069

District’s covered-employee payroll

$

29,327,760

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

0.00%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability

61.51%

Notes to Schedule
Entry age
Actuarial cost method
Level percent of salary, closed
Amortization method
method
22.4 years
amortization
Remaining
4-year smoothed market
Asset valuation method
Changes in benefit terms
Changes of assumptions

None
During 2011, rates of withdrawal, retirement and assumed rates of salary
increases were adjusted to reflect actual and anticipated experience.
These assumptions were recommended as part of the Experience Study
for the System for the five-year period ended June 30, 2010.
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COMBINNO AND NDWDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Account receivable
Due from State of Connecticut
Inventory
Total Assets

67,954

S

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
$
Due to other finds
Due to state of Connecticut
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Restricted for
Federal and state grants
Athletic capital
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

67,954 $

7,013
55,479
4,324
1,064
67,880

$

14,112
697
28,918
14,723
58,450

33,214
2,485

S

14,723

14,723
74
35,699
(20,044)
30,452

—

35,699
(20,044)
(5,321)

67,954 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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—-

-—

---

$

$

45,840
63,771

74
—-

35,699 $

115,280
3,182
28,918
14,723
162,103

7,208
73,215
4,324
46,904
131,651

195 $
17,736

---

74

$

$

$

$

Athletic
Capital

School
Cafeteria

State and
Federal Grants

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$8,450

—

35,699

$

35,699

$

162,103

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Special Revenue Funds
Total
Nonmajor
State and

School

Athletic

Governmental

Federal Grants

Cafeteria

Capital

Funds

Revenue:
Sales of lunches

,

milk, and other fees

$

---

$

1,023,128

$

Contributions
Investment income

1,214,302
1,214,302

Federal & state grants
Total Revenues

173,566
1,196,694

3,109
1,000
37

$

---

4,146

1,026,237
1,000
37
1,387,868
2,415,142

Expenditures:
Current:
Cost of goods sold

Salaries

442,178
569,923
39,983

122,159
1,214,302

1,237,015

---

442,178
1,442,466
71,507
68,360
281,311
23,336
122,159
2,451,317

---

35,000

---

35,000

1,214,302

1,202,015

---

2,416,317

---

872,543
31,524
68,360
119,716

and wages

Supplies and miscellaneous
Instructional programs
Employee benefits
Repairs and equipment purchases

Total Expenditures

---

161,595
23,336

---

Capital outlay

---

---

---

---

---

---

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in (out)

Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures
and Other Uses

(5,321)

---

Fund Balance

-

beginning of year

Fund Balance

-

end of year

The accompanying notes

are an integral pafl

74

$

74

---

$

of these financial statements.
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(5,321)

$

4,146

(1,175)

31,553

31,627

35,699

$

30,452

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Student Activities Agency Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Balance
July 1, 2014
Assets
Cash

$

427,144

$

781,178

Balance
June 30, 2015

Deductions

Additions

$

828,167

$

380,155

Liabilities

Total Liabilities

174,987
33,962
138,657
3,314
6,415
2.833
40,230
24,013
2,733

$

$

$

S
High School Activities
Athletics program
Scholarship Funds & Central Activities
Pomperaug Elementary School Activities
Gainfleld Elementary School Activities
Middlebury Elementary School Activities
Memorial Middle School Activities
Rochambeau Middle School Activities
Longmeadow Elementary School Activities

427,144

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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781,178

$
172,470
13,011
114,877
4,984
5,316
3,799
38,081
26,187
1,430

301,662
109,251
39,176
11,281
14,059
15,214
173,009
144,041
20,474

299,145
88,300
15,396
12,951
12,960
16,160
170,860
146,215
19,171

$

828,167

$

380,155

POMPERAUG REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT #15
TOWNS OF MDDLEBURY AND SOUTHEURY, CONNECTICUT

FEDERAL SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Charles Heaven

& Co.
Certified Public Accountants
Waterbury, Connecticut

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAflERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED N ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Board of Education
Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Middlebury and Southbury, Connecticut
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Pomperaug Regional School District #15, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Pomperaug Regional Schoot District #15’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 28, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and peffornüng our audit of the financial statements, we considered Pomperaug Regional School
District #15’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Pomperaug Regional School District
#15’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Pomperaug
Regional School District #15’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A sign(flcant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

CHARLES HEAVEN & Co.
Waterbury, Connecticut
December 28, 2015

-56-

Charles Heaven

&

Co.

Certified Public Accountants
Waterbury, Connecticut

INDEPENDENT AUDiTORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM, ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 0MB CIRCULAR A-133, AND ON THE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Board of Education
Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Middlebury and Southbury, CT
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s (the “School District”) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the School District’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2015, The School District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School Disthct’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. M audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School District’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on School District’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the School District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the School District’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with 0MB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School District’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OME Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by 0MB Circular A-l33
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of School District’s as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School District’s basic financial statements.
We issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2015, which contained unmodified opinions on those
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by 0MB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has be subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

CHARLES HEAVEN & Co.
Waterbury, Connecticut
December 28, 2015
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Grant Number

Federal
CFDA
Number

12060-SDE64370-20977-2015

84.027

Special Education Idea Part B
Special Education Idea Preschool

12060-S0E64370-20977-2014
I 2060-SDE64370-20983-2015

84 .027
84.173

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies

12060-SDE64370-20679-2015
12060-SDE64370-20679-2014

84.010
84.010

137,194
29,000
166,194

Title II Improving Teacher Quality
Title II Improving Teacher Quality

12060-SDE64370-2085 8-20 15
12060-SDE64370-20858-2014

84.367
84.367

24,614
50,022
74,636

Carl D. Perkins Vocational Education

12060-S0E64370-20742-2015

84.048

27,353

Title III English Language Acquisition

12060-SDE64370-29063-2015

84.365

2,388

Development of Mastery Exams Gr 4 6 & 8

I 1000-SDE64370-l 2171-2015

84.002

6,486

Federal Grantor; Pass -Through; Program Title
U.S. Department of Education
Passed through the State of Connecticut
Department or Education:
Special Education Idea Part B

-

-

-

-

-

Expenditures

$

599,797
206,326
26,828
832,951

1,110,008

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through the State of Connecticut
Department of Administrative Services:
National School Lunch- Commodities

Passed through the State of Connecticut
Department of Education:
National School Lunch

12060-50E64370-20560-2015

10.550

2,468

10.555

154,781
157,249

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1,267,257

Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2015
Note “1”— Accounting Basis:
Basic Financial Statements
The accounting policies of Regional School District No. 15 conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental organizations.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the accrual basis
consistent with the preparation of the basic financial statements. Information included in the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
For cost reimbursement awards, revenues are recognized to the extent of expenditures. Expenditures
have been recognized to the extent the related obligation was incurred within the applicable grant period and
liquidated within 90 days after the end of the grant period.
For performance based awards, revenues are recognized to the extent of performance achieved during
the grant period.
Certain financial assistance is not dependent on expenditure activity or the achievement of performance
goals and, accordingly, is considered expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These financial assistance
program receipts are reflected in the expenditures column of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
Note ‘2’

—

Other Federal Assistance:

The United States Department of Agriculture makes available commodities for donations to schools.
An amount of $2,468 is reflected in the expenditures column in the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and represents the market value of such commodities received during the period.
No other federal assistance was received in the form of loans, loan guarantees or insurance.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Middlebury and Southbury
Schedule of Federal Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2015
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

A.

Financial Statements
Unmodified

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

yes
yes

X
X

yes

X

no
none reported
no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

yes
yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:

X
X

no
none reported

Unmodified

My audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section 5 10(a)?

yes

X

no

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number
84.027/84.173

Name of Federal Proaram
Special Education Grants Cluster

Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between Type A & Type B Programs
yes

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
B.

X

no

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS
No matters were reported.

C.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
No matters were reported.

D.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF THE STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Towns of Bethlehem and Woodbury
Schedule of Federal Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2015
Finding#2014-O01:
Pomperaug Regional School District #15 did not properly comply with cash management guidelines.
Condition:
Pomperaug Regional School District #15 had excess cash on hand at June 30, 2015.
Questioned Costs: None
Context:
The Region had followed the correct procedure in securing vendor services and with the anticipated need
to cover expenditures, requested funds for the IDEA Part B 611, Title I and Title II grants. Unforeseen
vendor issues delayed the expenditures from occurring until August of 2014.
Effect:
This caused excess dnwdown under the cash management guidelines.
Cause:
Unforeseen vendor rescheduling.
Recommendations:
Establish a firm commitment with vendors.
Management Response:
We will continue to monitor the cash management procedures more closely.
Status:
The School District adhered to proper cash management.
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POMPERAUG REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT #15
TOWNS OF MDDLEBURY AND SOUTHBURY, CONNECTICUT

STATE SINGLE AUD1T SECTION

Charles Heaven

& Co.
Certified Public Accountants
Waterbury, Connecticut

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCFIEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTENCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE SINGLE AUDiT
ACT

Board of Education
Pomperaug Regional School District No. 15
Middlebury and Southbuzy, Connecticut
Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program
We have audited Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Office of Policy and Management Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s major state programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015. Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s major state programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its state programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Pomperaug Regional School District
#15’s major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Single Audit Act (C.G.S. Sections 4-230
to 4-236). Those standards and the State Single Audit Act require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Pomperaug Regional School District
#15’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major State Program
In our opinion, Pomperaug Regional School District #15 complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
state programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Pomperaug Regional School District #15 is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Pomperaug Regional School District #15’s
internal control over compliance with types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Single Audit Act, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Pomperaug Regional Schooi District #15’s internal control over
compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State Single
Audit Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by the State Single Audit
Act
We have audited the financial statements of Pomperaug Regional School District #15 as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2015, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial
assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State Single Audit Act and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial
Assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

CHARLES HEAVEN & CO.
Waterbury, Connecticut
December 28, 2015
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2015

State Grant Program
Core-CT Number
Department of Education:
Child Nuthtion Program ( School Lunch State Match)
Healthy Food Initiative Program
CCS Professional Learning Mini Grant
Adult Education

1 1000-SDE-64000-16072
11 000-SDE-64000- 16212
I 1000-SDE64370-12566
I l000-SDE-64000-17030

Expenditures

11,259
23,102
4,406
863

$

39,630

Total State Financial Assistance before Exempt Programs

EXEMPT PROGRAMS
Department of Education:
Transportation of School Children

I l000-SDE-6400-l7027

146,465

Magnet School Transportation

I lGO-SDE-64000-17057

24,700

Excess Costs Student Based and Equity

I 1000-SDE64000-17047

1,684,064
1,855,229

Total Department of Education
Department of Administrative Services:
Commitments for School Construction
School construction projects principal
School construction projects interest
-

-

379,417
31,677

I 3010-SDE-64000-40901
I 3009-SDE-6400040896

411,094

Total Department of Administrative Services
Public Utilities Regulatory Authority:
Public Educational and Governmental Programming and
Educational Technology Investment Account

99,888

12052-DEP44620-43611

2,366,211

Total Exempt Programs
$

Total State Financial Assistance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,405,841

Pompcraug Regional School District #15
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2015
The State of Connecticut Department of Education has provided financial assistance to Pomperaug
Regional School District #15 through grants and other authorizations in accordance with the General Statutes
of the State of Connecticut. These financial assistance programs fund children’s education, transportation,
school lunch and school building renovations and construction.
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies of Pomperaug Regional School District #15 conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies relating to the aforementioned grant
programs.
Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The Fund financial statements are prepared using
either modified accrual for governmental funds or accrual basis for proprietary and fiduciary funds.
The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental funds. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e..
when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for General Obligation bond principal
and interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due.
Under the accrual basis of accounting revenue is recorded when earned, and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred.
The Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, contained in this report, is prepared
based on regulations established by the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management. In
accordance with these regulations (Section 4-236-5), certain grants are not dependent on expenditure
activity, and accordingly, are considered to be expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These grant
program receipts are reflected in the expenditures column of the Schedule of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance.
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Pomperaug Regional School District #15
Audit Results of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2015

/

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
We audited the basic financial statements of Pomperaug Regional School District #15 as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2015 and issued our unqualified report thereon dated December 28, 2015.
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

yes
yes

X

no

X

no

yes

X

no

yes

X

no

X

none reported

State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

yes

We have issued an unqualified opinion relating to compliance for major State programs.
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
To be reported in accordance with Section
4-236-24 of the Regulations to the State
Single Audit Act?

yes

X

no

The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit:
State Grantor and Program

State Grant Program
Identification Number

Expenditures

Depamnent of Education:
Healthy Food Initiative Program

$

23.102

Dollar Threshold used to distinguish Type A and Type B Programs

$

100.UIfl

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
No matters were reported.
III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
No matters were reported.
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